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ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FOREST

As originally established, there were two divisioms of what
is now the Siuslew Natiomal Forest, namely; the northern, which
was celled the Tillamook, and the southern known as the "Coast
Range" Umpquae The areas shown in red on the attached diagream
were included in the original proclamation of March 2, 1907
However, these were eliminated by.the Exeoutive Order of July 1,
1908, which consolidated the two divisions into the Siuslaw National
Foreste The origin of the name "Siuslaw” is not entirely cleare
It is said to be a contraction of an Indian name meaning "Far away
waters”, the authority for this derivetion being an old Indian
named Davis, who was living in 1909 at the alleged age of 100 yearse
This Forest was created under unusual ciroumstances, at a time when
the conflict between the defenders and critics of the them new
"conservaticn” idea was at its heighte The Appropriation Bill for
the Fiscal Year 1908 conteined what was known as the Fulton amends
mente This was & provision which withdrew from the Presidemt
end placed in the hands of the legislators, sole authority to
thereafter create and enlarge national farests in six western
states, including Oregone However, immediately before signing
this appropriation bill, which clipped the executive wings,
President Theodore Roosevelt remndered it harmless for the time

being, by creating 21 additional Farests by presidential




proclemation. Among these was the Siuslewe The initial boundaries
of the Forest were accordingly hastily conceiveds In his report on
the eliminations above mentioned, Jolm De Guthrie observeds
"Sufficient time was lacking in which to have a

field exsmination made of the region prior to the creatiom,

end consequently the boundary line was not well placede™
The boundaries were based on maps showing public lends and date
concerning the location of timbered areas them on file in
Washingtone The creation of the Siuslaw was not related to any
local situatiom, but it was the product of a general policy to
establish Forests wherever there were sufficiently large areas of
suitable public lamnds to justify such actione

There appears to have been little agitation, either far or
against it, as reflected in the local presse Contemporary files
of the Bugene Register made no reference to ite The editor was
more concerned about a ship canal between Eugene and Corvallis,
although he did pay his respects to the Fulton amendment by
condemming what he termed

"the policy of the Interior Depaertment in putting

all Govermment lands in the west into Forest Reserves for

the purpose of shutting out settlers and stopping the

development of the countrye™

Senator Fulton visited Toledo in November, 1907, and
although most of Lincoln County had been recently placed inside
the Farest, the local account of his visit makes no reference to
the matterse

However, a petition wes circulated about this time which

doubtless represented the views of those who took notice of what
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was happening and who objected to ite The creation of the Forest

was protested on the following groundst

(2) Nearly all timber within the areas had already passed

(v)

(e)

(a)

(e)

(£)

to patemt and there were a large number of actual
settlers on agricultural lendse

Great injustice was being dome bscause burning could
not be done without a permit and the rainy season set
in before permits could be securede

The greater part of the land inside the Forest valuable
for agriculture and grazing and "not valuable for timber
at all,"™

Creation of the Forest removed lands from the tax rolle
Owners could not sell amd the value of their lands
diminished by government restrictionse

Settlers who try to make final proof are being

harassed by adverse reportse
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EARLY EXPLORATIONS

In the fall of 1919 the lookout om Table Mountain, when
autting firewocod from a fallen fireescarred Douglas fir, was
startled at the discovery within the tree of an old blaze bearing
ummistakable evidence of cuts by a metallic instrumente The ring
count indicated that this tree had lived far 160 years after the
cuts were made, and on the spot where it had evidently stood, 2
Douglas fir 50 years old was growinge Sections of the tree showe
ing the cuts were placed in the museum which then occupied the
Forestry Building in Portlend,and aroused considerable intereste
Supervisoar Shelley calculated that the mysterious marks had beem
made before the Year 1700, Historians searched the records to
learn who among the early explorers might have reached the summit
of Table Mounteain and speculated whye The nearest approach wes
the theory that about 200 years befare a Spanish ship was wrecked
near Seasidee Four of its crew were captured by the Indians, and
others who escaped to the south may have climbed this mountain to
survey the countrye This rests on the supposition that one of the
captured Spaniards was called "Konapu" by the Indians, that he
married a native maiden, that his son later beceame an aged "old
blind Ind an®, who was interviewed in 1811 by one Gabriel Fremchere,
& Frenchman, and thus identified as a descendent of the Spanish
sailoril Thng we have rather a doubtful record of the first white

man who may have set foot within the Siuslaw Foreste




The early adventurers who visited this regiom, both Spanish
and English, left nothing behind but names attached to natural
landmarkse Bartolome Ferrelo probably caught the first glimpse of
the Siuslaw in 1543, Sir Francis Drake skirted the coast in 1575
Martin de Aguilar pessed that wey in 1603e Captain Brumno Heceta,
in the frigate "Santiago™ left his momiker on the promontory of that
name in 1775¢ Three years later Captain Cock, on Ste Perpetuats Dey,
observed the headland, which bears the name of that sainted ladye
In 1788 John Meares tagged Cape Lookout, and later inecidentally
inaugurated the shipebuilding industry on the i’aoiﬁ.c Coast, aleng
with the introduction of Chinese labore

A distinguished visitor of more modern times was Jedidiah Se
Smith, Rocky Mountain trader and explorer of some note, who arrived
at the mouth of the Umpqua from California in 1828, He gave the
Smith River its name but so excited the cupidity of the Indians
with his 300 pack-enimals laden with furs, that only himself and
two others survived the massacre which ensued, Its exact, or even
approximate location, is not knovme The furs were afterward
recovered and sold to Hudson Bay Company for $40,000 In 1840,
the missionary, Jason Lee, visited the same region and gloomily
reported the "Umbquas" to be "a few miserable fish eaters who were
as savage ag bears," with teeth worn away by contimmed eating of
sand along with other food from the seae

The discovery of gold in California and the tide of

immigration into the northwest territory stimulated activity on
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the part of the Federal Governmente In 1850, Lieute Commander
McArthur, in commsnd of the schoomer "Ewing", of the Coast Survey,
examined the entire north Pacific coaste His report recommended
further inspection of the "Alseya, Yaquinna and Illamock (Tillamock)
Rivers", A light station was established at the mouth of the Umpqua

in 1857, The first vessel kmown to have entered this river estuary

was the Sem Roberts on August 4, 1850




INDIANS

Although the Indiens have had no influemce on the course
of events, something may be said ebout them, since a large part
of the present Siuslaw Forest was once embraced in the Coast Renge
Indisn Reservaticne The Act of 1848 establishing a territorial
goverrment in Oregon, provided that the rights of the Indians
should not be impaired "so long as such shall remain unextinguished
by treaty betwoen the United States and Indiens,” Treaties were
subsequently negotiated and upon the outbreek of the Rogue River
Indian War in 1856, all the tribes still remaining peasceful were
gathered and moved to above-named reservetion, which had been
established in 1855 with headquarters at Siletze A seamill was
built there in 1858, The reservation comprised 45 towmmships,
extending southward from Te 5 Se, €0 Te 17 Se and from the Pacific
Ocean eastward to the west boundary of Renge 8. On December 20,
1865, a strip 20 miles wide immediately north of the Alsea River
was released from the original reservatiom, which left two separate
pieces, the Siletz at the north and the Alsea at the southe All
told, spproximately 3,000 Indians, from 24 different tribes, were
originally brought to the reservatiome Others, including the Alseas,
Lower Umpques and Siuslaws, remained in their native oouﬁbry, and
the sub=agenoy established at Yachats loocked after theme There were
two villages reported here in 1869, with 250 inhabitants and

several hundred acres of land under cultivatione The agenocy farm
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was located on land fromting the ocean just north of "Yahuts",
later ommed by Geoe Me Starre Between the Yachats River and Cape
Perpetua are deposits of shells but these are not believed to be
true "Kjokkemmoddings", since no bones, skulls, tools, etce common
to these things are founde

Early commemtators heve not ascribed to these Indians a
very high degree of intelligence, although in passing the following
medical code, early adopted by the reservation "legislature”,
shows some reflections

"Any doctor who doctors any person and thinks he

cannot cure him, must tell the person he cannot cure

him so that he does not rob him of all his property, and

recoive $2¢50 for his servicese But if the doctor keeps

on doctoring him and does not cure him he 1s to be fined
310400 and costs, if proven" ”
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EARLY SETTLEMENT

Tillamook County

The first white man to emter the Tillamook regiom, as well
as the first to skirt the copst line to the south and traverse
those portioms of the Siuslaw which extend to the sea, was Arthur
Blacke Other authors give the name of this man as Richard Laughline
He was one of the three survivors of the Smith River Indian
massacre in 1828 who came north to find friendly shelter with the
Tillamoock tribe, the other two having excaped to the Willamette
Valleye The rich dairy lands around Tillamook Bay and the mouth
of the Nestucca early attracted the attention of lend«hungry
pioneers, but 'bhe;} found them difficult of accesse In 1841 a herd
of cattle was driven from the Willamette Valley to Tillamock Bay
across the present Experiment Station via Neskowin and Pacific Ciéy.
Ten years later one Joe Champion fitted out a whale boat in Astoria,
loaded it with supplies for trading with the Indians, and later
became the first white settler, He was a mem of prophetic vision
and wrote in his diary "The Indians generally seem pleased with the
prospect of having the white men settle among them (Poor Fools$)e™

In_1853 Joe Quick came in from Gremd Ronde via the Salmon
River, driving his worldly goods ahead of him on pack-horsese
Another early traveled route was the old Indlan trail from the
mouth of the Columbia by way of Cannon Beach, over Neahkahnie

Mountain to Nehalem amd thence across Tillamook Baye By 1885




there were enough settlers to finance a boat, the "Morning Star",
which made regular trips to Portlande Not until 1870 was .
Tillamook, originally known as Lincoln, selected for a county seate
An ambitious tycoon of about this period was Charles Ray, who
located a store, hotel, bank, and cheese factory at Cloverdale in
1884,

Prior to the coming of the railroad, built between 1905 and
1911, commercial toll road compenies endeavored to supply facilities
of transportatione The first ome was built in 1872 by State aid,
from North Yamhill to Tillamook via Trask Rivere It operated as late
es 1900, but is now but an overgrown trail along which a trunk
telephone line is maintainede A toll road was built from Grend
Ronde to Hebo by wey of Dolph in the early 80%s, which was still in
use in 19144 These early higlways, scarcely more than dirt wagm
trails with corduroy to render pa.ssable’ the moist places, seem not
to have been highly pi'ized, since the Trask River franchise sold for
$500 in 1880, and when the County finally took over the "Big™ and
"Little Nestucca Clay Wagon Road Companies™ the total consideration
was $1500¢ )

Yagquina Bay Region

Prior to 1893, when Lincoln County was created, the county
of Bemton extended to the Pacific Ocean, with Corvallis, the present
headquarters of the Siuslaw National Forest, as the county seate
The town was originally called Marysville, but in 1853 this was

changed to Corwallis, a coined name derived from Latin words
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meaning "the heart of the valley"e. Yaquina Bay, with its estuary
extending inland 25 miles to Elk City, was the prospective seaport

of this expected inland metropolise First arrivals on the coast
fourd the entire region embraced in an Indian reservatiom, the

only white men being soldiers who menned the block house at Siletz,
another (Fort Hoskins) being located in Kings Valley, and a third
(Fort Tampico) about six miles from Corvallise In fact, the "Calumet®,
first ship to enter Yaquina Bay, in 1856, brought supplies for

Fort Siletz, of which Lieute Philip He Sheridan, of civil war days,
wes in commende About this time the military authorities cut

through some sort of a road from the Willamette Valley to Siletz
which was used in bringing Indians to this newlywestahl ished reservas
tion, and also in the year 1856 the first white men made the trip
overland from Corwallis to Yaquina Baye The only beds of true native
oysters ever found in Oregon were located on Yaquina Bay in 1861

by Captain Spemcer, the first white settler, and the town of Oyster=
ville was establishede Oystermen claimed the right to teke them from
o navigable stream, but the Indian agent said not so except on payment
of 15 cents a bushele He made a contract with Winant & Company of
San Francisco, who paid the price and carried them away by the boat
loade Others tried to make the beds common property, but soldiers
drove them offe The case was finally carried to the Supreme Court
of Oregon, which decided in favor of the Indian agent, and thus

closed the book on the "Oyster Wares"™ The beds are now exclusively
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controlled by a cancern which operates a day and night spot on
Ankeny Street in Portland, Oregon, and there alone can Yaquina
Bay oysters be founde With the elimination in 1866 of a 20-mile
coastal strip, including the Yaquina Bay region, from the reserva-
tion, a land rush got under waye Newport was founded in that year
as the "germ of the San Francisco of Oregon," and a posteoffice
established on July 2, 1868 The bay was charted by the Coast and
Geodetis Survey the same yeare There was even a minor mining
excitemsnt, Gold was supposed to reside in the heavy black beach
sandse The Corwnllis Gazette of April 4, 1867, relates the
establishment of a mining camp at Newport in accordance with State
lawse In the meantime, in 1864, the Corvallis and Acquina Bay
Military Wagon Road Company had been formed with subscriptions of
$20,000, and its toll road to Elk City was opemed in 1866 A
federal gramt of lands to the State of Oregon accompanied the effort,
which was transforred to this company, and on July 13, 1867 and
July 19, 1871, certificates were filed alleging construction of a
road, in return for which the company received a grant of 19,485
acrese The levy of tolls was discontinued in 1871e¢ The road was
improved through the efforts of individuals and local road districts
until about 1915, when the State Highway Commission came to the rescue,
and the present pavement was constructedse

However, rail trasportationwas the nesd of the houre After
numerous false starts the Willamette Valley & Coast Railroad Company

had received a state charter in 1874, and in the succeeding four
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years succeeded in building a line from Corvallis to Philomathe

One T, Edgerton Hogg then appeared on the scene and projected

the road to the east via Boise, Idaho, with Newport as its western
terminuse About this time Ben Holliday orgeanized the OeRek Ne
Company to link Oregon with the east by way of the Columbia River,
and a battle of rouses followede Harbor development at the mouth
of the Yaquina began in 1830 with an initial appropriation of
$40,000, which has since swelled to upwards of $2,500,000¢ Hogg
laid a few hundred yards of steel at the summit of the Cascades
over Hogg Pass in order to hold his right there,and put a box car
upon the tracke Finally, in 1884, a ribbon of steel comnected
Yaquina Bay with Corvallis, and a huge celebration at Newport
greeted the "Yaquina City", the new 1200~ton steamer and ome of
three boats which the railroad company put on the San Francisco
rme She was strangely wreocked in 1887 when crossing the bar, and
a year later her sister ship, the "Yaquina Bay", suffered a similar
fatose A ory of sabotage by riwval interests arosee Investors became
discouragede The grandiose plans of Mre Hogg languishede The
Willamette Valley abandomed wheat for diversified farming and a
railroad now traversed it from north to southe Shipments at Newport
fell from 40,074 tons in 1890 to 576 toms in 1901, and the dream of
a great seaport on Yaguina Bay faded to a memorye In 1892, after
appointment of a receiver, the properties of the Orogon Pacific

Railway Compeny, as it had becomes to be called, said to have cost

=13




$13,000,000, were knocked down at $100,000 The Corvallis & Eastern
emerged from the wreckage which was in 1907 taken over by the Southern

Pacifie,

Alses Bay
George Collins settled at the mouth of the Alsea in 1860. Others

followed about 1865 A steamer was built at Waldport in 1872, the
"Lizzie", and put on the San Francisco run, but stable trade commections
could not be developede In early times the transportation problem from
the interior was solved by rafting supplies down the Alsea River at
high water from the present town of Alseae These rafts were broken up
upon arrival at tidewatere It was not until 1915 that the establishe
ment of a satisfectory wagon road down the Alsea River was seriously
undertekene Ths county, state and federal govermment then emtered
into a cooperative agreement covering a four~year period and involving
the joint expenditure of$192,000 , which was later increased to
$367,0006

At that time the road carried a twice-a-week mail stage but
1ittle through travele It was only passable for automobiles in
June, July and Auguste The engineering reconnaissence showed "probably
10,000 acres along the route in actual cultivatiom,™ and about 250
femilies, with croameries at Alsea and Waldport, supplying the pay
checkse Despite expected expansion to follow road constructiom,
District Renger Kerby in 1940 estimates the mumber of families at 80,
with but 1200 acres under cultivatiom, the creamery at Alsea having

been replaced by a second one at Waldporte
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Siuslaw River Cotmtrx

Florence early became the center of the fishing industrye
Early reports by Forest officers noted that "tons of salmon are
caught in the rivers within the Forest", and fishermen made as
mich as $50 in a single nighte The town was founded in 1876, but
the proximity of shifting sand dwunes has from the start hindered
its development as a shipping porte In 1877, the steamer "Duncan™
found but two fathoms of water on the bar, which was reported as
five fathoms in 1883 when first fully recamnoitered by the Coast
and Geodetic Surveye But by 1887 & great sand flat had changed
the location of the bar emntirelye In 1883 there were three
carmeries at Florence, and a road had been campleted to Eugene
Citye This road followed the route by way of Notie Portions of
it are still existing, and so tortuous was it that timid travelers
in the semi=-weekly stage are said to have been strapped in lest
they jump out with frighte These early roads were little more than
parallel wheel tracks through the woods, battling with undergrowth
on either side for possession of the righte=of-way, precariously
skirting the base of steep rocky hillsides a few feet above the bed
of winding streams, or stretches of trackless mire between the
rail fences of farm fieldse Traﬁling these roads, vehicles tilted
wevenly over slides, dropped suddenly into unsuspected chmck holes,
passed through narrow planked wooden truss bridges poised uncertainly
over the streams, and these ruts in winter filled to the brim with

watere
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Much was expected in the lower Siuslew country from the
arrival of a railroad, which was completed in 1916, by the
Willamette Pacific Railroad Company, now a part of the Southern
Pacifice However, it headed for Coos Bay and passed up Florence

and the mouth of the Siusiaventirelys

Umpqua Estua::x

Tihen Levi Scott arrived at the mouth of the Umpqua in
1850, he found the few remaining Indians more hospitable than did
Jededieh Smith twentywiwo years before, and voyaged up the river
as far as the head of Tidewater, took a donation claim, and
established Scottsburge Under the then existing law, married men
who emigrated to Oregon prior to December 1, 1850, received e grant
of 640 acres, and single men 320 acres, after which date the grant
was cut in halfe Dowm near the mouth of the river at Gardiner, the
first oustom house in Oregon had been established some time prior to
1855¢ A postmoffice was established here in 1865, This was the
neerest port of emtry to California, and it soon was serving an
interior region as far south as Yreka, Californiae Along the entire
coast the only water grade gateway imto the back country was provided
by the Umpqua River, and Scottsburg became a busy freight tremsfer
point, from which strings of pack-snimals supplied the newly-
discovered placer diggims in Jackson County, around Jacksonviilo.
In 1852 Congress appropriated $120,000 to construct e military rocad,
which was later completed to Yrekam, California, work being carried on

wmder the direction of Gemeral Jo Be Hooker, of civil war famee The
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original towm of Scottshurg was destroyed by a flood and nothing
now remains to remind the passing motorist of its pioneer glorye
It was at one time proposed to extend ravigation on the Umpgque
River as far inland as Roseburge In furtherance of this scheme,
in 1870, a 122=foot stesmboat, called the "Swen", was constructed
and after much effort partly floated and partly dragged over the
rapids and through the shallows until at the end of a l4=day
journey it "docked" at its destination on a sand bare This
acoomplishment resulted in a Congressional appropriation of
$22,000 for river improvement, but its expenditure failed to
establish the Umpqua as a navigable streame

The first extensive lumbering and milling operations in the
vicinity of the Siuslaw National Forest cemtered at the mouth of
the Umpqua River, Here, at Gardiner, a mill was built in 1864,
which was destroyed by fire in 1880, along with most of the towne
About this time the Gardiner Mill Company was organized, We Fe
Jewitt of Maine, and Je Ke Nowland, of San Francisco, being the
moving spiritse After accummulating a large acreage of highegrade
timber in the Smith River and Umpqua River watersheds by methods
in vogue at the time, & new mill was built, to be rebuilt in 1890,
end to be finally burned in 1916¢ In these early days the ccean
was the only highway of commercee Six sailing vessels of 200,000
to 500,000 board feet capacity carried the manufactured product to

Californis, returning with cargoes of supplies and merchandise for
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the company storee Lo;-;ging operations were conducted with jack
screws, skid roads, and ox teams, thus getting the logs to tide=
watere

Interior

Because of the lack of numerous furebearing animls, absence
of minernl wealth, and presence of extensive burned areas, the
interior region of what is now the Siuslaw Forest was not immediately
inviting to the early pioneerse The human stream flowed into the
Tiillamette Valley on the east, and along the coast line on the west,
attracted by fertile areas on the oms hand, and fishing and water
haul logging on the otherse

Slowly settlemenmt filtered into the narrcw interior valleyse
Its course in early days is fairly well chronicled by the dates of
General Land Office land surveyse These began in 1854-1858 around
the mouth of the Umpgua, moved northward along the Pacific coast
line, were extended in 18687 to the Smith River Valley emd Yaquina
Bay region, then in 1874=1879 to the Siuslaw and Alsea valleys and
mouth of the Nestucsca, and later into the back country toward the
sunmit of the coast rangee The Smith River Valley, up which tidewater
extends to Sulphur Springs, was penetrated at an early dates

Settlement of the area within the Forest between the Alsea and
Siuslaw Rivers began about 1870, By 1890 & road hed been built from
Alses down Lobster Creek as far as the Taylor place below the mouth

of Phillips Creek, with a branch up Preacher Creek, this being the




first means of wagon ingresse At this time, the main Alsea Highway
had not yet reached the junction of the Alsea with Five Riverse
Later a road came in from the south up Deadwood and Indian Creeks,
following the route of earlier trailse As population increased,

post=offices were established as follows:

Year Neme Location

1892 Fisher Sec.l Tel5 S.,R.].O We
Earl W Sec610,T,19 S.,R.lO sfo

1909 Denzer ‘.EfSE Secel9,Teld Se,Re9 ™7

Sulphur Sprgse NE}‘S”Q’? Sece33, Te20S., R.lO T'Io

Paris W 860022, T.15 S., R.g e
1900 Reed SWESES Secel3,Tel6 Se,Rellie

Pawn ME;- Secel5, Te 16 Se, Re 11 We
1892(7) Minerve T Sece26, Tel7Se, Rell We
1890 Alpha SE*—I > Sece T, Te 16 Se,Re 8 e

lost of these have now "disappeared without a trace®, only Fisher
and Alpha still being in operatione At the time the Forest was
established in 1907, there was a cooperative farmer telephone line
from Alsea to the Elsworth Prindel place in Sece 33, Te 15 Sey Re 9 We,
but the Five Rivers section was abandoned in about 1924 The Three
Rivers precinct cast 24 votes in 1908, evenly divided as between "wet"
and "dry",

The first settlers, according to Me Se Durbin, dean of the
Forest personnel, who served from 1907 until his retiremerf in 1931,
were actuated by a desire to establish homese River bottomlands were
first occupiede Adventure and opportunity were the lodestonese They
came not in a great wave of immigration, but slowly, in small groups
and singly, ever pressing deeper into the wilderness and trespassing

more and more upon the areas, which, regardless of future development,
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were incapable of sustaining life under eny sort of agricultural
economye Blazes through the forest guided the more remote settlers
in their arduous journeys to the nearest store far suppliese Back-
pack transportation was succeeded by such beasts of burden as the bull,
ox, and mule. Soon a school might be established in a settler's
dwelling, with a two or three months' term in summer when the trails
were dry enough to travel, Selfe-sustaining farm units, hovever, could
not be developed except in the most favored spotse There was nothing
which could be sold from the ranches, Settlers were obliged to go out
at some time during the year to earn a grub stake, or found it nearer
home peeling chittem barke In 1914, the price of bark rose to 30
cents per pound, and at that time many homesteads were filed upon,
only to be abandoned as soon as the bark was gonee Supervisor Cohoon
observed in 1912: "Were it not for the large amount of chittem bark
in these moumtains, it would have been almost impossible for these
settlers to have made a livinge"™ The extent to which this industry
contributed to pioneer economy is indicated by bark shipments £rom
Corwallis in the early 90's of from 25 to 30 tons yearly. Bark was
marketed in local stores like eggs wnder a barter systems Camps

were ostablished in convenient locations by men who hired laborers

at current wages, and either contracted with settlers or stole the
bark outright from the Governmente Others turnmed to fishinge
Supervisor Seitz reported in 1907 "It is the running season far
salmon and fishing takes precedence over everything else - the

annual harvest of the winter grubstake.” The deficit in agricultural
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return was also mede up by hunting fur=bearing animals which were
more numerous and varied than nowe Revenue came from cats, coyotes,
cougar, otter, and native foxe Others worked at hop picking or in
lozging campse Settlers raised a fow beefl cattle, dairy cows, some
sheep, and goats for mohaire The Forest population was estimted by
Pagter in 1917 at 2500 It was first thought that improved
transportation would melke for permanent settlement in less favored
localities, but with the coming of good roads and automobiles, this
seens to have worked in reversee

Sonetimes early settlers were single mem, without immediate
heirs, whose lands with their hardeearned clearings and rough
improvements defaulted to the county for taxes, and were gquickly
overgrovn by alder and bracken ferne Many of the first-camers in
the Schooner Creek area were Finns, men of all trades, often
educated in a business waye Here, for exsmple, came Gustave Granfor,
a bachelor, who put up a house and barn and cleared three acres,
became homesick and returmed to his native land, only to be killed in
the revolution of 1917, previous to which he had mortga.ged his place
for $200 to Jack Wick, a storekeeper, who in turn passed it on to his.
successor in business, who lost it to a wholesale grocer, who sold it
to a mew settler, who lost it on a mortgage to a Portland bank, who
sold it back to the United Statese This chain of title is a history
in brief, the pattern of which has been msny times repeated in the

unfoldment of a pioneertfs dreame
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PERSONNEL

Then first placed under administration in 1907, the Siuslaw
was soon divided into four ranger districts; namely, Hebo, Waldport,
Florence, and Gardiner, The latter was eliminated in 1931 at the
time the area south of the Umpqua River became the property of the
State of Oregone

During the period 1920=1930, the Florence District was
divided, with a Forest officer stationed at Floremcee In the main,
district boundaries have undergone few changes, other than those
caused by additions to the Foreste In 1937, however, recrea:bibnal
areas along the coast south of Florence were transferred from the
Mapleton to the Waldport Districte

Arranged chronologically, the Forest officers who have been
in charge of this Forest, and of its subdivisions, are as follows,
the dates being in some cases but approximates

The Forest

Fred E. Ames Acting Farest Supervisor 1807
Clyde Re Seitz Forest Supervisor 1907=-1308
inson Ee Cohoon Forest Supervisor 19081913
Je Roy Harvey Acting Forest Supervisor 1913
Hugh Be Rankin Forest Supervisor 1914-1918
Ralph Se Shelley Forest Supervisor 1918=1938
Thomas He Burgess Acting Forest Supervisor 1934-1935
Dahl Je Kirkpatrick Forest Supervisor 1938w

Fred W, Furs.‘c ‘ Forest Supervisor " 1942-1550
‘VBoyd L. Resmussen Forest Supervisor . 195062,
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Hebo District

George E. Leach ’ ' 1907-1908

Wilbur J. Stillwell | 1908
George E. Leach 1909-1910
Frederick R. Russell 1910-1912
Robert J. Craig, Jre 1912-1915
Chas. T. Beach ~ 1915-1918
Leroy E. Garwood 1918-1937
Robert Aufderheide 1937-1240
Carroll E. Brown 1941-1943
Rolfe E. Anderson 1943 -

Weldport District

sMertin S. Durbin 19C7-1923
Walter Sackman 1923-1925
#sGeorge P. McClanahan 1925-1930
Louis H. Neff ' 1930-1935
Harvey A. Welty | v 1935-1937
Edward S. Kerby 1937-1945
Howard G. Hopkins 1945~

* Assigned to timber-sale work 1923, Retired 1931.

«» Became Superintendent of Road Construction in 1930.




Florence District

Carl He Young 1907-1913
Je Le lMacKechnie 1914-1915
George Te McCaskie 1916-1918
Sdward Se Kerby 1919

Purl Ne Stephenson 19520-1925
*E4 Fo Poterson 1926

*Domald He Dickerson 1925-1927
*Louis He Neff 1927=1930

Mapleton District

Edword Se Kerby 1920=1937
Harvey A. Welty m
Herman C. DL11 1940
**Gardiner District

Peter Se Rice , 1908-1911
Otto T'eaver 1911-1919
Donald Ge Knox 19191927
Hobart He Durbin 1927«1931

In addition to the above, sn alphabetical list of other
Forest officers who have at various times been assigned to the

Siuslaw, up to December 31, 1939, inclusive, is given belows:

We Re Anderson Asste District Ranger
Chase Ge Brown " " "
Corwin B, Buffington Clerk

Robert Le Campbell ' Administrative Asste

lorked unier supervision of Mgpleton District Ranger
**District discontinued in 1931e
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Horace U, Cochran
Ce Jo Conover
Hargaret 1o Cooloy
Time Crosby

Robert Ee Diclkson
David Ee Fittam
John E, Gribble
Henry E, Haefner
De Geo Hartsuck
Mrse Pearl Hemingson
Charlotte Hewitt
Monterey Le Holst
Fe V. Horton
Simeri Jarvi
Herman M, Johnson
Ira Ee Jones
Juanita Kilborn
Winifred A, Kilburn
Louis Xing

He Te Lowis

Harry He Long
Horle Se Lowden

Ce Co MeGuire

Spencer T, Moore
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Asste Forest Ranger
Forest Assistant
Chief Clerk

Forest Assistant
Forest Assistat
Deputy Forest Supervisor
Forest Ranger (TeSe)
Forest Assistamt
Forest Assistant
Clerk

Clerk

Assistant Forester
Forest Assistant
Asste District Ranger
Forest Assistant
Supte of Construction
Clerk

Clerk

Chief Clerk

Asste Forest Ranger
Chief Clerk

Asste District Ranger
Comp Superintendent

Asste District Ranger




Le Be Pagter Forest Assistant

Clyde Lo Quam Clerk

Abbott Ce Reed Chief Clerk
Mildred Sinnott Chief Clerk

Ce We Welty Camp Superintendent
Arthur Re Milcox Asste Forester
Audrey Wilson Clerk

Effective on February 1, 1939, certain short-term
protective gmrds were brought into the classified Civil Service
by executive ordere The men accepting this change in status
and later gscquired Civil Service status were:

Adams, Herbert Se
Darling, Chase e
Dunn, Roy Ce
Finzer, Estle As
Hendrix, Jase Re
Johnson, Donald F,
Leeper, liurray Oe
McComb, Fremont
Mealey, Robert H,
Nesheim, Curtis Se
Sapp, Horman Le
Sylvester, Vime
Wakefield, Rex
Williams, Allan Me

A




LAND STATUS CHANGES

Despite the conditions surrounding the delineation of the
bourdaries of the Foreét, no further changes occurred wumtil the
Act of February 11, 1920, Citizens of Dallas and Corvallis them
became interested in the protection of their domestic water supplye
The Secretary of Agriculture and the Secretary of the Interior
jointly designated 1160 acres in Te 7 Sep Re 6 We for Dallas, and
1,720 acres in Te 12 Se, Re 7 We for Corwvallis as being suitable
for such purposese These areas consequantly became National Forest
land in the spring of 1920 They were former O%C lmmdse

Effective April 25, 1927, the southern tip of the Forest
south of the Umpqua River, as indicated on the attached diagram,
was transferred to the ownership of the State of Oregon and became
the Elliott State Foreste This wms in accordance with an exchange
agreement, under the terms of which the United States secured title
to certain Sections 16 and 36 within National Forests throughout
Oregon, which had heretofore been given to the State for school
purposese Lots 14 and 15, Sece 2, Te 23 Se, Re 10 Ve (power site
at Loon Lake), and Lot 6, Sece 8, Te 22 Sey Re 10 e (log landing
on Umpque. River) were not included in the exchange, however, and
are still part of the Foreste Lot 15, Sece 3, Te 22 Se, Re 11 We
wa.s overlooked when the Executive Order was prepared but the tract

is patentede
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Subsequent to Harch 20, 1922, various small tracts have

been added to the net area of the Forest through the operation of
the gzenerel Land Exchange Acte.Bffective Jumne 30, 1932, this Act
was amended to permit exchanges outside the exterior boundaries
of the Forest in Te 12 Se, Rgse 6 and 7 We, thus permitting oxe
chenges in the Mary's Peak arese

~ In 1936, the National Forest Reservation Commission approved
a purchase unit, comprising a gross area of 12,480 acres in the
lary's Peak rogione This has been followed by the purché.se to date
of 7,315 acres, which have been added to the Forest wnder the
provisions of the ileeks Lawe

As a result, partly of disillusionment and partly of

deliberate speculation, the Forest and adjacent territory
contained many socattered tracts which had beem patented under the
homestead and timber and stone acts and later abandonede In
addition, there were others upon which settlers were unsuccessfully
struggling to maintain themselves in comforte Nearly all of these
lands, which would justify a loan, were mortgagede They did not
form economic farm units, and save for smll alluvial creek bottoms,
were valuable only foar timber productione In order to relieve the
land owners.}b.nd at the same time promote effeotive land use, a land
acquisition program under the Agricultural Adjustment Administration
was set upe Forest Supervisor Shelley assumed charge, with head=
quarters at Tillamook, and later Thomas He Burgess, for the time being,

took over the job of administering the Siuslaw Foreste The providing
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of new homes for dispossessed settlers became a corollary to the
program and early in 1936 it became the Resettlement Administratiom,
with a large joint office of that establishment and the Forest
Service, under Mre Shelley in charge at Eugenee Then followed the
Farm Security Administration, the Bureau of Agricultural Economics,
and finally the Soil Conservation Service, all having a part in
handling the acquisition program, which terminated in its entirety
on June 30, 1938+ The result was the purchase of scattered tracts
both within and without the Forest, aggregating 69,482 acreses Such
of these lends as were located in Tpse 12 and 13 Se, Rgse 7, 8, 9,
and 10 We, and were not 0&C relinquishments, emounting to 5,628
acres, were made & part of the Siuslaw Forest on January 17, 1940
The Act of Congress embodying this legislation extended the boundaries
of the Siuslew as indicated on the attached plat, and thus authorized
land exchanges vwithin these boundariese The remaining tracts which
had been purchased, other then those which were originally 0&C
relinquishments, were added to the Forest by the Act of November 25,
19404

In order to provide an area for observation in the spruce=
hemlock type, the Cascade Head Experiment Station was designated by
the Forester (Fe Ae Silcox) on May 22, 1934 It comprised 6,417 acres,
including Cascade Head promontory, in Te 6 Se, Rgse 10 and 11 W,
being in Lincoln and Tillamook Countiese Marion Nance was placed in
charge of field work and served from October 10, 1935, to August 31,

1937, being succeeded by Je He Lenox, who was transferred to the
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Hew inglend Salvege Project July 22, 1939 Fremont McComb
succeeded Lenox on August 29, 1939, Building construction, consiste
ing of & residcence, woodhouse, and shop=garage, was begun in 1934

and completed about the fall of 19356
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EARLY AMINISTRATIVE PROBLEM

Among early administrative problems which faced the new
Supervisor in 1907 was that of tremsportatione Roads were still
non~existent and the broad estuaries of the main rivers, into
which tidewater flowed inland some 20 miles, were obvious avenues
of communicatione. Repid transit in those days was visioned by
Forest Assistemt Cockroft as follows:

"Then one can jump into e boat and ride 25 miles
in three hours, do his day's work and come back, there is

a great deal of time to be savedi™’

Two 20~-foot launches with ribs of "oak, yew and chittim" were
built by Martin Noffsinger of Acme, at & cost of $60e00 each and
delivered at Florence, one of which was teken to Waldporte Le Re
licDonald of Gardiner likewise built two 2le=foot launches at
Gardiner for $704C0e Craft were thus secured for the Unmpque,
Siuslaw and Alses Rivers, Supervisor Seitz at first being under the
impression that Smith River flowed directly into the sea, which
accounts for the fourth launche By the summer of 1908, the emtire
flotillae was in commission, augmented by four 9x26 scows, each
launch-scow outfit standing the Treasury ebout $3254004 After
about ten years" service and consequent depreciation, a demand
arose for bigger and better boatse The response was two new
"Columbia River"™ fish boats, each 26 feet long and 7 feet 6 inches
beam with 10 HePe engine, the "Umpqua" and "Siuslaw', built by the

7ilson Shipbuilding Company of Astoria in 1917 The "Umpqua”,
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wiich was new throughout, cost $1,315400e At about the seme time
“ce "Algea" went into commission, having been built at Waldport,
mith installation of a secondhand engine brought down from Alaske.
Trenceforward, however, the efficiency of water tremsportation
steadily declined befare the onrush of automobile and modern
hizhwayse Naintenance of these large boats with limited funds
available became a real probleme In 1921 the "Umpqua™ had become
"rery slow and clumsy", and in 1925 she "swamped twice in the last
two weekse" In the same year frantic requests by the Supervisor
vere met by the advice to "store the boate" The "Umpqua" was
finally sold for $200400, the hull of the "Siuslew" brought only
%7e18, the ongine being tremsferred to the Chelan, and the "Alses”
became the property of We Be lartins in return for $107.00e Thus

endzs marine transportatiom on the Siuslawe
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FIRE HISTCRY

At one time the Siuslaw National Forest was covered with a
dense stand of merchantable timbere It was destroyed by fire upon
dstes vhich now are but approximatee e have reccard of the Umpqua
Fire in 1846, said to have covered some 450,000 acres, including
much of the Waldport and Mapleton districts; the Nestueca Fire in
1853, embracing some 320,000 acres and including the Hebo District;
and the Coos Fire in 1868 of about 300,000 acres south of the
Umpqua Rivere A large fire is also reported as having occurred in
1868 in the mountain around Yaquina Baye It is said that residents
had to light their candles to eat the noon-day mesle A number of
houses were burnede

It is interesting to speoulate as to how these huge fires
originatede Lightning is not considered a serious hazerd in the
Coast Rangee The Indians were not a pastoral people who would have
emlated the light burning of modern times in order to secure graze
ing landse Nor is there evidence that during the dry season they
traveled far from the sea, which was the source of their food supplye
There were at that time no extensive unburned slash areas which
provided fuel for a conflagration. Records indicate that in the
Coast Range much rain falls in Jume, with usually a good rain in
July. Inflammable areas of dry fern which now exist were presumably

originally covered with stends of timber which were less combustiblee




Although David Douglas, the young Scottish bobanist, who explored
in Oregon from 1826=~1830, speaks in his journal of seeing fire around
Oregon City and south through the Willsmette Velley, it is quite
likely thatx‘:g;cgless indifference the early white men caused the
fires which resulted in what has sometimes been called the "Siuslaw
Hational Burne'™

Aside from the large fires above mentioned, we have no records
prior to the establishment of the Forest in 1907. Reburns of
portions of the area cecurred from time to timee None of the early
land survey notes mention going fires but their comments on conditions
found are interesting:

Te 4 Se, Re 7 We (1873) "Great fires have swept over

this tomnship end destroyed nearly all of the timbere

Grasses and wild pea vines grow ablmdantly and the greater

part is suitable for grazing purposes,”

Te 3 Se, Re 9 We (1880) "The timber has long since
been deadened by fire and lies prostrate on the grounde"

Te 3 Ses; Re 10 We (1872) "Much of this towmmship has
been burned many years ago and the ground is covered with
fallen treese”

Te 12 Se, Re 8 We (1875) "The mounteins are covered
with a dense growth of fern, salal, cherry amd other brush,
with thousands of logs lying in all directionse The large
tinber is all dcad, having been killed years agoe”

For the Calendar Year 1909, the Forest Supervisor (Cohoon)
cheerfully reportss

"There were no fires on the Siuslaw Forest during
the yeard"

However, it was different in 1910e But 6 of rain fell
between May 26 and September 15 On ingist 23 the wind shifted to
the east and blew a galoce
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"On this day" writes tho harassed Supervisor, "every=
thing seemed to be thoroughly saturated with an inflammable
substance which ignited easily, or burst into fleme
spontaneouslye The people became excited and meny of them
lost all sense of reason, and for the want of something
better to do, set out backfirese Fires were left umattended
and in a few cases not visited at all until after the fire
had burned itself out."

Under date of August 26, 1910, the editor of the Lincoln County
Leader remembers thats

"Despite the warning of the County Court, who have
done everything to acquaint the people of the danger during
the dry season, fires are raging in almost every directione"

The acreage burned inside the Forest bowmdaries in 1910 was 50,556
Attempts at suppression cost $681400e Firefighting was difficult
in those dayse One o0ld report showed 10 hours elapsed starting
time, with a footnote "waited for the tides"

Other bad fire years with acreage burned were as follows,

the losses during the intervening years being relatively smalls

1922 8,108
1929 13,994
1931 5,104
1936 5,376
1938 11,456

The sharp increese in suppression costs, due to more
intensive measures, is well illustrated by the expenditure of $681
and burned areas of 50,566 acres in 1910, as compared to §115,000
and 11,456 acres in 1938, In 1933 the Wilson River Fire, the most
disastrous in modern times, after burning across 267,000 acres and
destroying 12 billion feet of timber, approached the Siuslaw

protective boundarye A large crew was recruited and a considerable
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expenditure incurred on precautionary measures, but this fire

died before the issue was joineds The reburn in 1939, however,

crossed this boundary and burned 1,758 acres inside end establisned

a record expenditure of $146,000s The Triangle Lgke Fire in 1929,

Yachats Fire in 1936, and the Smith River Fire in 1938, were costly,

all having started without the Siuslaw protective areae

lightning fire of record in natiomal forest history wes

1927

The final result of this long series of fires is

the present cover status of lands inside the Forest, as

in the following recommaissance tabulation:

Douglas fir (old growth) 37,674 acres

Douglas fir (second growth) 309,511
Alder , 80,747
Other (Including 15,122 acres

0ld burn not restooking) 65,870

Net Forest acreage 493,802
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REFORESTATION

The extensive fires prior to the creation of the Forest
produced on the Siuslaw an irregular intermingling of clean burned
areas, tracts of pure fern, alder slopes, second=-growth fir and
old=growth timber. Need for reforestation was immediately manifeste
It begen in 1908 in the Mt, Hebo areas, which was largely entirely
denuded of tree growth, with the planting of 2-1/2 acrese We He
Gibbons was in charge of this early work and 19~1/2 additional acres
were planted in 1909, He M Johnson came in the fall of 1912 and
continued in general charge of the plenting work until 1920 On
arrival he described conditions in these words: "Alder forms a
narrow belt adjacent to the water coursese Other than that, the
area is bare of tree growth and the snags are very thicke" This
work has continued to date, with a total coverage of about 6500 acrese
Included in this are 358 acres planted on acquired FSA program lands,
which had in previous years been laboriously cleared by sweating
homesteaderse Another type of plenting peculiar to the Siuslaw is
that of Holland grass for the purpose of prevenmting wind erosion of
sande This destructive agency has encroached upon timber, clogged
the outlets of stream and destroyed recreation sitese Plantings of

Holland grass aggregate 300 acrese
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TIMBER MANAGEMENT

The destructive fires of early days very definitely placed
the Siuslaw in the deferred income classe No large body of old
grovth remained which would provide an extensive long-term logging
operation with consequent large receiptse Oases of mature timber
in varying size were left here end there, but only those accessible
to wmter tranéportation were touched prior to the comparatively
recent advent of truck logginge Immediastely adjacent to the
Mapleton District, however, shingle mills were early established
along the Siuslaw River, notably the Delta Shingle Company at the
mouth of the North Fork of the Siuslaw, and the Momroe Shingle Coat
Betzene During the period 1919-1925, both were extensive operationms
in government timber, selling fir logs in open market end sawing
shingles in their own millse The total out, taken mostly from
Morris, Lawson, and Hoffman Creeks, was about 25,000,000 board feete

In the spring of 1922, an oocular estimate was made of the
watershed of Murphy Creek, s tributary of Smith River, about 4 miles
from Gardinere The result wes disappointing, the timber on governmemt
lands being scettered and fire damaged, and nothing was revealed
which would indicate the remowal of some 10,000,000 board feet of
timber, mostly Douglas fir, in the years irmediately followinge
However, lured by an inviting market for Jap squares, the Umpque,
i1l and Timber Company was argenized, a mill with a capacity of

80 1, per day built at Reedsport, and operatioms began on both
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government and private timbere Spurred by rumors of unexpected
competition, the Company bid $2400 per Me for timber advertised
at $1e50e It was a losing geme from the start and after a
disastrous finencial reorganization, the new officers of this
Company hastily withdrew from the enterprise cn Murphy Creek end
settled on the basis of $400 damages to cover timber under contract
viiich could not be loggede It was a compromise settlemente The
operation involved the construction of a mile of logging railroad
and was the only such operation ever handling National Forest
stumpa.goe

At about the same time a more successful operation was in
progress on spruce=bearing land between Siltcoos Lake and the Pacific
Ocean, Here a 200~acre remnant of government timber, overlooked by
the early day speculators, was sold to the Crown-Willamette Paper
Companye An inmteresting sidelight on this sale was that the bid of
the Crown-iiillamette Company was to have been rejected in favor of
8 lower bid from the He P, Dutton Lumber Company, on the ground that
the latter was a small outfit and accordingly more deservinge However,
at this inopportune time, the mill of the latter located on Siltcoos
Laice near Westlake, was destroyed by fire, thus settling the argumente
Over 12,000,600 board feet were removed in 'bhié ;ale, 80 per cent of
it being sprucee

Other early deals in spruce were made with Ce McC. Johnson

of Reedsport, who built a poorly constructed mill there in 1917,
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A total of 13,275 M. FteBslle were cut from two tracts; ieee, ome to
the east of the upper arm of Three Mile Lake, and the other between
the Umpqua River and the sand dumes, both in Te 21 Se, Re 12 We
These transactions continued over the period 1921-1922, the logs
being sawed up into short blocks at the mill and shipped via rail
to the Crown-Villamette Paper Compeny at Oregon Citye The banner
year for timber cut was 1523, with 13,263,000 board feet, but 1524
broke the record for total receipts with$31,665.

Two developments which notably affected the utilization of
natural lforest timber were the introduction of truck logging, and
the development of the plywood industrye Trucks made possible,
vrith comparatively small initial investment, the marketing of meny
smell "islands" of unbumed old-growth timber, particularly in the
Hebo Districte The high price paid for peeler logs also opened
new tracts and permitted long hauls to the millse

Activity in the marketing of alder, the only western -
commercial hardwood, began in 1928 when Ted Hormschuck cut in
trespass on Pollard Creek in the Hebo District and was made a sale
for 330,000 board feete For the next ten years he moved his small
portable mill from place to places In 1537 the demand for alder
furniture stock increased sharplye Permanent alder mills were built
in Beaver and Tillamook, and the Three Rivers Alder Company who
operate the latter, purchased in 1937 a tract of 4,100,000 board

feet of alder on Beaver Creek, Tith a view to establishing a
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sustained yield for this industry, an alder mamagement plan for
the Nestucca Torking Circle was worked out in 1939,

The plentiful supply of cascara bark provided ready cash for
most of the early settlers in the Coast Renge, as well as an
opportunity to trespass on government lendse First sale from Hational
Forest lands wes made in 1914 The World War upped the market price
to a dizzy height, peelers receiving as high as 30 cents per pounde
In 1918, 60 tans of bark were sold and during the period 1914-1920
the total take was 188 tonse Since then, except for a revival in
1924, this activity has declined, and not since 1929 has the market
price been high enough to attract either peelers or trespassers to
any great extente

Other minor products found on the Siuslew Forest which have
aided local residents to keep the wolf from the door, and for which
no charge or a very nominal one is made, are sword fern, huckleberry
brush; and fox~glove (degitallis)e A forest product gathered ysars
ago but now seldom merketed is Oregon grape roote This plant has a
large tap root of medicinal waluees However, it must be dried for

six months by way of preparation for markete
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TIORLD WAR DAYS

The years of the first World War in 1917 and 1918 witnessed
intense logging activity elong the coast immediately adjacent to the
Foreste In October, 1917, the national monthly production of aire
plane spruce was 3,000,000 board feete Decision was made to increase
it to 10,000,000 board feet with utmost speed, and this was later
raised to 30,000,000 board feete The Ue Se Spruce Productiom
Corporation undertook this task in the face of a critical situatione
Pending construction of rail tremsportation facilities, the plan of
riving spruce logs into cants for easier hauling was adopted, and a
contract was made on a cost plus basis with the Warren Spruce Company
to carry on operations in the Yaquina Bay regione Labor was provided
by enlisted soldiers at going wagese Ranchers and small loggers were
also urged to get out cants on their omm accounte Every spruce tree
we.s a "suspect" until its absence of straight grain was provens A
srain deflection of one inch in 20 was permissiblee It was soon evident
that extensive clear-cutting on a large scale would be impracticable
in v:iew of the increased war requirements, since this would flood the
market with a quantity of lumber of other species and in consequence
selective logzing first came to the Pacific Northwest in a big waye
It was expemsive, as trees were usually scattered, one specimen per
acre being an exceedingly good showe The riving processws even more
so, since the heart of the tree amd all of the tops were left in the

woodse However, this was a temporary expedient end railroad
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construction vas soon under waye. CFrosperity came to Toledo, which
was selected as the center of activities in the Oregon Coast rogione
The soldiers quartered there not only built spruce production
utilities, but provided the town with uildings for a freight office,
post=office, and bank as welle Rail lines were projected north and
south from Yaquina Baye The Yaquina Northern took off at the
terminus of the Southern Pacific and ran north for eleven miles into
Sections 32 and 33, Te O Se, Re 11 We The Alsea Southern started at
South Bay opposite the SePe terminus end went south across Alsea Bay
at Taldvort over a long trestle into Sections 23 and 24, Te 14 Sey
Re 12 We for a trackage distance of 24 milese These were well built
as permanent rail lines designed to serve as a "lasting benefit for
the development of the counbry.," Scarcely anything now remains but
dilapidated bridges and overgrown right-of=waye In addition, a six=-
mile line was built northward from Toledo toward the Siletz Rivers
The Alsea Southern was built primerily to open up the Blodgett Tract
between the Alsea and Yachats Rivers, an area of 13,440 acres,
containing an estimated stand of 786,101,000 board feet, 32. per cent
of which was Sitka spruce. Construction was exceedingly difficult,
there being only intermittent narrow wagon roads, and efforts to
transport bridge timbers along the beach were unsuccessfule The
plen of towing them to a point opposite the intended site was then
adoptode Coast Guard boats carried the lines ashore, rafts were

made fast and the bridge timbers left stranded by the receding tides
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The total stand estimated as tributary to the Yaquina Northern was
1,394,633 board feet, 43 per-cent of which was sprucee An eighte
acre tract was secwred at Toledo and construction of a $750,000
sawnill begun in July, 1918, together with a cut-up plant, similar
to the ome which had previously been built at Vancouvere

The Armistice of November 11, 1918, brought a sudden end to
the operations of the U, Se Spruce Production Corporatione It found
itself in possession of the Blodgett tract, with reilroads all built,
Toledo cut=up plant ready for the installation of machinery, and the
saamill about 70 per cent completes

At this juncture, Ce De Johnson, an experienced St. Louis
lumberman who had disposed of his holdings in the east and was
seeking mew fields, appeared and, with the aid of Louisiana
capitalists, organized a holding company known as the Pacific Spruce
Corporatione It was capitalized for $2,500,00000, which was
inereased in 1923 to $5,000,000600, an issue of $1,000,000¢00 in
preferrod stock in the meantime having been floated, making the
total capitalization $6,000,000400s Three subsidiary companies
were organized; ieey;., Ce De Jolmson Lumber Company, which was the
;‘:elling/ organization; Manary Logging Company, which handled woods
operations; and Pacific Spruce Northern Railwsy Company, which

undertook the extension of the railroad north from Toledo into the

Siletz River regione The Blodgett tract, which had originally belonged

chiefly to John We Blodgett, Ce Ae Smith, and Je Ee DuBois, along with
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the Toledo mills, railrcads and other miscellaneous equipment, was
purchased under contract on December 17, 1920, by the facific
Spruce Corporation from the U, Se Spruce Production Corporation far
$2,000,000¢ The value placed on the Blodgett tract in this deal
is said to have been $285,00000. The purchaser agreed to develop
these properties into a going concern and payments were related to
the current timber cut, title to remain in the Govermment until
final paymente The Blodgett tract is thus still off the tax roll,
although after a heated controversy the mill properties became
taxablee In order to fortify its position for an extended stay,
which was at thet time estimated to be 40 years, with a hint at
sustained yield phrased as a "well-nigh perpetual operation”, the
Pacific Spruce Corporation added to its holdings the timberlands
in the Siletz region to the extent of about 14,000 acres, carrying
835,000,000 board feet, until its entire control amounted to about
2,000,000 board feete Logging operations began in March, 1922
Logs from the Siletz tracts were either rafted down from Silebz
Bay, nearly 7,000,000 being handled in this memner in 1923, or
brought in by rail over the line rumning directly north from Toledoe
The Alsea Southern operated umtil 1936, when the tracks were torn
up, and the timber still remaining on the Blodgett tract will be

moved by truckse
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LAND USE

Settlement and econonic exploitation of the area within and
adjacent to the Siuslaw Forest, as it had progressed up to the time
of the creation of the Forest in 1907, was considerably influenced
by the trend of legislation pertaining to the disposal of public
landse The prevailing view then was that public welfare demanded
divestment by the Government of its holdings as fast as possible, so
that citizens might acquire title individually to what they had
previously ovmed collectivelye Any other program was considered an
obstacle in the path of progresse The swing of the pendulum to its
present position, where citizens are either giving up previously=
acquired marginal lands to the Government entirely, or living upon
good ground supported by cash subsidies, with ths idea of promoting
the general welfare, was heresy in those dayse

From 1862 to 1878 the only law under which title might be
acquired was the homestead law, and then only after survey of lands
upon which settlors had squattede In the latter year, the Timber
and Stone Act was enactede This, too, applied only to surveyed lands,
but no cultivation was involved, and purchase at $2450 per acre was
required to perfect titlee Homesteaders thus remained part or full=-
tine residents of their lands for long periods awaiting su;c'vey, and
2 backecountry "way of life" persisted in the face of most adverse
conditions which lost its lure after patents were acquiredes In 1917,

Pagter reported that of alienated lands within the Forest, 60 per cemt

=l G




were patented as homesteads and 19 per cent as timber claimse
Many homesteads, however, were in reality timber claimse By the
time the Forest was created in 1907, over 60 per cent of the
homestead filings had been abandonede The Timber and Stone Act
mede no provision far the purchase of stumpage in the large blocks
which were necessary for extensive logzing and milling operationse
This defect in the law produced fradulent practice and the dummy
entrymane In this way much of the old-growth timber, particularly
in the southorn part of the Forest, was comsolidated into private
holdingse The alienation of lands under the Timber amd Stone Act,
particularly thrifty secondegrowth stands, atbtained great momentum
about 1906, the local papers of the day publishing columm after
colum of final proof noticese

The Forest Homestead Act of June 11, 1906, was in effect
at the time the Siuslaw Forest was establishede Howover, the Forest
was closed to the acceptance of further applications on December 20,
1910, after 332 had been received, on the ground that it contained
no areas fitted for agriculture which had not already been patentede
Opposition to this policy deweloped, the character of which was
indicated by a petition signed by some 230 members of the Siuslaw
River watershed tributary to Mapleton, requesting that the order be
rescinded and reoiting thate

"(a) A national forest is a detriment to the people
living in its vieinitye
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"(b) All kinds of natural resources are withheld
from usee

"(s) The Forest is run to help the big man and not
to help the home buildere

"(d) Homesteads are taken away from setitlement for
ranger stationse

"(¢) Forestry officials are opposed to settlers end
wish to keep the country a wilderness by reporting against
all claims, whoether good or bade

"(s) Forestry officials are EZastemn theorists, who
know nothing about the weste

"(g) Timber sales are handled in the interest of the
timber truste

"(h) The Forest reserve prohibits settlement, thereby
reducing amount of taxess"

A reversal of the closure policy followed in July, 1913, at
which time the Eugene Guard amnourced with large headliness
"Siuslaw Reserve is to be openede Homesteaders may
file on any tract which will support a familye Settlers
located freee Forest Service invites entrants to Oregon

Coast country from Tillamook to Coos Baye Thousands of

acros available,"

A flood of applications followed, more than 400 being received
within six months, the construction of the railroad at that time down
the Siuslaw acting as a stimluse However, very few of the expected
visitors visioned by the newspaper found the latch-string on the
outside as far as any good land was concerned, and the curtain was
rung down on farest homestead activitiss, with a total of 1,115
applications received between 1907=1916, inclusive, and only 24,162
aores listede At this writing, no person is known to be making a

living, or even residing upon, a patemted June 1l claime
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PUBLICATIONS - . Eugene, Oregon
Siuslaw December 21, 1239

MEMORANDUM ON SUMMARY OF EVENIS OF THE YEAR 1939
SIUSLAW NATIONAL FOREST

The year of 1939 has witnessed the haypening of the following
events on the Siuclaw Natlonal Forest: :

Assistant Forester M. L. Holst was transferred to Massachussetts
to work with the Northeast Timber Salvage Administretion, Assistant For-
ester Wilcos was tramsferred t0 a staff position on the Willsmettis '
National Forest, Clerk Clyde Quam wac transferred to the Malhen» -
National Farest and gtemographers Audrey Wilson and Theresa Lehrbach
were ¢ransferred o the Porbland effices of the Forest Service amd :
Bureau of Public Roads, respectively. Assistant Ranger Charles G,
Browt replaced AScistant Ranger S.T.Mcore on the Waldport Ranger Dis-
trict ard Junior Forsster Jehn Weisgerber replaced Junier Forester
Hubert M. Wilson as technical forewan in the Nestucea CCO Campo

During the year just passed 200,000 trees were. planted on 316
acres of ‘denuded lands in the Hebe wnit of the Siuslaw Mational Forest,
Tree pruning opergtions were comducted in the young secord growth
stands anMt, Hebo ocver an area of appreximately 343 acrec. Timber
sales involving 576t M feet B.M, yielding ‘2817, were nade from
the forest. :

An uwaceasenal dry rpell during Mareh, April, amd May resulted
in an unusualiy hazardous spring fire seasem during which 17 fires
burned over 395 acres of reproduction om cut over and open fern
lands, During the late suvmer, a period of the worst fire weatler
recorded in the fire weather resords oceurred, reaching a peakX om -
August 18 which breught the Saddle Mt, Fire ona 20 mile front imto
the Siuslaw Protective Unit from the 3illmmeok Barn Area, This fire
was fought with a grew totaling ahout 1500 men and with favorsble Wes-
ther condition the turned area witimin the Siuelaw Naticmel Forest pro-
tective area was held to 1700 acres, During the season, ‘ths proteq’hiv'e
force of the Biuslaw National Forest took action on 50 fires which'
Burned over 2240 acres, the supPression costs ¢ which amounted %o
approximately $152,250, ,

Though during 1939 no new recz!eatién areas were develofe&,the
‘Forest was visited by an estimated nuwmber of recreation visitors total-
lug .. persens, The Cleawoy rgenization tract was occupied comtin-
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ously from duly 1 to September § by six separate character Euildiniﬁi:i
organization groups from Fugene and M, oshfields e

A new lookout house ard tower were comstructed on Green Peind in
the vicinity of Neckowin, New road ccnstrlction was confined to the
Myivi g Pesll Projeet, the Lestmanet-Meadow alee Road and the .Oge Loadgs
Road on the Cascade Head Experimental Forest. Mainterance was accem-
plithed on 411 miles of forest rcada, 402 miles trails, =nd 495 miles

telephone-lines,

- On July 15, 1339 the office of the Siuslew Natignal Forgst wes
moved from the fourth floor of the Minor Building to new quarters on
the second fipor of the Wew Poct Office Building. : :

DANL J, KIYRKPATRICK

Forest Suypervisor
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HISTORICAL BOTES FOR CALINDAR YERR 1940.

Headguarters Change

The year 1940 witnessed the removal of the Siuslaw headquarters,
on June 29, from Fugene to Corvallis, where a new office location was
secured in the Y. R, Smith Building., About the same time a storage
warehouse was rented at Second and Washington Streets.

Personnel Changes

Clerks Margaret I, Cooley and Pearl Hemingsen were transferred
to the office of the ﬁegional Fiscal Agent on July 1 and October 1
respectively. Clerk Clyde L. Quem returned to the Siuslaw by re-
transfer from the Malheur, on September 1. TFire Assistant L.E.
Garwood transferred to the Umpqua on Fanuery 15, He was succeeded
by Robert Aufderheide on February 28, who, in turn, was succeeded
as District Ranger at Hebo, by Carroll E.Brown, by transfer fram
the Regional Office on February 19. Clerk Audrey Wilson transferred
to the Regional Office on July

Administrative Changes

During the field season (April-October) due to inecapacitating
injury to District Ranger Welty, Hubert O, Wilson acted as District
Renger in the Mapleton District, He was transferred to the Whitman
at the conclusion of this assignment, on November 1.

Camp Completed

The Hebo Work Camp was completed in 1940,




HISTORICAL NOTES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 1941

Yachats Purchase Unit

The Yachats Purchese Unit, containing 21,204 acres, in Twps.
13 and 14 S,, Rs. 10 and 11 W., was set up in 1941, On July 2
purchase option for the Blodgett tract, a portion of this unit (see
World War Days in this history) was accepted, covering 12,732 acres,
at a price of $99,947.14.

Natural Area Created

Under date of October 27, a tract of 686 acres in Sections 1
and 2, Twp. 6 S., Rg. 11 W., fronting on the Pacific Ocean, was elim-
inated from the Cascade Head Fxperiment Station and des ignated as the
"Neskowin Crest Natural Area®, the object being to maintain a stand of
spruce-hemlock type forest in its natural condition.

Mary's Peak Road Completed

The road to the summit of Mary's Peak, begun in the summer of
1938, was completed in the fall of 194l. Both CCC and WPA crews
were employed on this work, under the immediate direction of foreman
Clayton R. Barclay.

In connection with the deveiopment of improvements on the sume
mit the City of Uorvallis donated to the government the NWh: NW% of
Sec., 28, Twp, 12 S, R. 7 W. and leased to the govermnment its other lands
on the summit.

Personnel Changes

Assistant District Ranger Charles G. Brownm, of the Waldport

District, ‘transferred to the Washington Office, effective June 16,
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his successor being Kemneth Walin from the Mt. Baker Forest, ef-
fective October 1. Clifton C. McGuire came to the Siusiaw as
Assistant Forest Supervisor early in the year and handled fire con-
trol until his retirement on September 30. Clerk Ann Pirzer
trensferred to the Portland Office June 16, being succeeded by
Karl A. Chapler, who came from the Umpqua under CCC authority and
was furloughed at the end of his accumulated leave on January 15,
1942, Clerk Charlotte Hewitt resigned in favor of marriage with
Georze W. Tichy, effective February 17, and was succeeded by Enid
Funk, from the Rogue River, on February 18, Principal Foremen
Fenton Starr transferred to the Siskiyou, effective June 16, his
successor being Lester N, Fdge, from the Willamette.

On July 25 District Ranger E.S.Kerby, while cutting an
alder tree from a telephone line, fell and received serious internal
injuries. He recovered, however, after being hospitalized and off
duty from July 25 to September 7, inclusive.

Special Fire Precautions

A 20men suppression crew, with Rex Wakefield in charge, was
stationed at the Hebo Work Cemp, & S-man crew in the Mapleton Dis-~
trict, and a apecial prevention guard assigned to each district,

by reason of the National Defense situation. No serious fires.

Large Timber Sale

A timber sale to the A.F.Coats Lumber Co. for 5,710,000 board
feet was approved on September 29, which established the highest prices

yet recorded on the Siuslaw, namely: Douglas fir and Sitka spruce,




$4,97: Western Red Cedar, $1.76; hemlock, 57 cents; cooperative
deposits, 30 cents.

CCC Camp Moved

Nestucca CCC camp, F-71, was evacuated on July 8 for tempor-
ary quarters in the old Cape Creek Camp. During the summer, Camp
Albert Angell, F-141, at Big Creek, was constructed by the Army and

permanently occupied in December.




